



Palliser Regional Schools

Palliser Centre

#101, 3305 - 18 Avenue North, Lethbridge, AB T1H 5S1
 Phone: 403-328-4111 Toll-free: 877-667-1234
 Fax: 403-380-6890 www.pallisersd.ab.ca

BOARD OPERATIONS
 BOARD OF TRUSTEES

POLICY TITLE	Board Operations
POLICY HOLDER	Board of Trustees Palliser Regional Schools
ORIGINAL DATE	
REVIEW DATE	
REVISED DATE	
NEXT REVIEW	

Policy Statement:

The Board of Trustees are to conduct meetings in accordance with the requirements of the School Act. The Board has adopted procedures in order that the business of the Board can be conducted in an orderly and efficient manner.

Board meetings are open to the public, however, if at any time when public interest is best served by private discussion of specific in-camera session will be held. Having members of the public make presentations at board meetings may enhance communication.

~~The following procedures are intended to facilitate effective and efficient Board meetings.~~

Board Action:

~~The following procedures are intended to facilitate effective and efficient Board meetings.~~

~~The following procedures have been approved by the Board in order that the business of the Board can be conducted in an orderly and efficient manner. All Board meetings will be conducted in accordance with the requirements of the School Act. The Board meetings are open to the public. There are times when public interest is best served by private discussion of specific in-camera sessions. Having members of the public make presentations at board meetings, when appropriate, will enhance communication.~~

1. Elections

~~4. Wards~~

~~Wards are established as per Within the stipulations of Ministerial Order 115/94. Any changes to wards or to the composition of the Board shall be done in consultation with the public and will require final approval by the Province, which established Palliser Regional Division No. 26, the Board has decided to provide for the nomination and election of trustees within the division by wards and electoral subdivisions. Further, the Board has accepted the name Palliser Regional Schools as its community identification. Copies of the Ministerial Order are available from the division office.~~

~~1. The Regional Board shall consist of two wards described as follows:~~

~~Ward 1 That area contained within the County of Lethbridge No. 26 prior to regionalization identified for school purposes.~~

~~Ward 2 That area contained within the County of Vulcan No. 2 prior to~~



**BOARD OPERATIONS
BOARD OF TRUSTEES**

~~regionalization identified for school purposes, excepting municipal Electoral Division No. 6.~~

~~2.—The total number of trustees to be elected within the Regional Division shall be six(6), and Ward No. 1 shall consist of four (4) electoral subdivisions, and Ward No. 2 shall consist of two (2) electoral subdivisions, all of which are described as follows:~~

~~4.—Ward No. 1~~

~~Subdivision No. 1 —The rural and urban portions of the County of Lethbridge No. 26 over which the County controls the educational operations, which lies south and east of the Oldman River, excepting that portion which lies within the municipal boundaries of the Town of Coaldale.~~

~~Subdivision No. 2 —The urban portions of the County of Lethbridge No. 26 over which the County controls the educational operations, which lies within the municipal boundaries of the Town of Coaldale.~~

~~Subdivision No. 3 —The rural and urban portions of the County of Lethbridge No. 26 over which the County controls the educational operations, which lies north and west of the Oldman River and which lies south of:~~

~~—Section 6 of township 10 of range 21 west of the 4th meridian;~~

~~—Sections 1, 2 and 3 of township 10 of range 22 west of the 4th meridian; and west of:~~

~~—Sections 3, 10, 15, 22, 27 and 34 of township 10 of range 22 west of the 4th meridian;~~

~~—Sections 2, 11, 14, 23, 26 and 35 of township 11 of range 22 west of the 4th meridian;~~

~~—Sections 2, 11, 14, 23, 26 and 35 of township 12 of range 22 west of the 4th meridian;~~

~~—Sections 2, and 11 of township 13 of range 22 west of the 4th meridian;~~

~~Subdivision No. 4 —The rural and urban portions of the County of Lethbridge No. 26 over which the County controls the educational operations, which lies north and west of the Oldman River and which lies north of:~~

~~—Section 6 of township 10 of range 21 west of the 4th meridian;~~

~~—Sections 1, 2 and 3 of township 10 of range 22 west of the 4th meridian; and east of:~~

~~—Sections 3, 10, 15, 22, 27 and 34 of township 10 of range 22 west of the 4th meridian;~~

~~—Sections 2, 11, 14, 23, 26 and 35 of township 11 of range 22 west of the 4th meridian;~~

~~—Sections 2, 11, 14, 23, 26 and 35 of township 12 of range 22 west of the 4th meridian;~~

~~—Sections 2 and 11 of township 13 of range 22 west of the 4th meridian.~~

~~2.1. Ward No. 2~~

~~Subdivision No. 1 —The rural and urban portions of the County of Vulcan No. 2 over which the County controls the educational operations, which lies west of the Bow River, south of the Siksika Nation (Blackfoot Reserve) and east of Highway 23 and 24, and excluding:~~

~~—The urban portion of the County of Vulcan No. 2 which the County controls the educational operations, which lies within the municipal boundaries of the Village of Carmangay; and~~

~~—Electoral Division No. 6.~~

~~—Subdivision No. 2 —The rural and urban portions of the County of Vulcan No. 2 over which the County controls the educational operations;~~

***Together we will ensure learning success for all students
to develop their unique potential as caring citizens in a changing world.***



BOARD OPERATIONS BOARD OF TRUSTEES

~~which lies south of the Bow River and west of Highway 23 and 24 and including the urban portion of the County of Vulcan No. 2 over which the County controls the educational operations, which lies within the municipal boundaries of the Village of Carmangay.~~

~~2. Death of a Candidate~~

~~If a candidate for the Board of Trustees dies between Nomination Day and Election Day, the election for the office the deceased candidate was contesting is discontinued as of the date of the candidate's death.~~

~~An election will be held to fill the office the candidate was contesting within three (3) months after Election Day of the election for which the candidate was nominated.~~

~~3. Modified Election Voting Procedures~~

~~The modified voting procedure shall be used for the purpose of conducting elections pursuant to the provisions of the Local Authorities Election Act.~~

~~4. If a vacancy occurs in the membership of the Board during the three (3) years following an election, a by-election may be held, unless this vacancy occurs in the last six (6) months before the next election. If two (2) vacancies occur prior to the third year of the term of office, a by-election must be held.~~

2. Organizational Meeting

~~1. An organizational meeting of the Board shall be held annually and, in any year in which a general election takes place, within four (4) weeks following the date of that election. The Superintendent shall ensure that a notice of the organizational meeting is sent to each trustee as if it were a special meeting.~~

~~2.1. Each trustee will take the Oath of Office immediately following the call to order of the organizational meeting after a general election. Special provisions will be made for a trustee taking office following a by-election. The core elements are covered by the [NNNNNNNLocal Authorities Elections Act](#)~~

~~3.2. The Superintendent or designate shall act as Chair of the meeting for the purpose of the election of the Board Chair. Upon election, the Board Chair shall preside over the remainder of the organizational meeting. The election of the Board Chair shall be for a period of one (1) year.~~

~~4.3. The organizational meeting shall, in addition:~~

- ~~1. Elect a Vice Chair **and Alternate Vice Chair**;~~
- ~~2. Establish the location, dates and times for regular Board meetings and any additional required meetings;~~
- ~~3. Create such standing committees of the Board as are deemed appropriate and appoint members;~~
- ~~4. Appoint Board representatives to the various boards or committees of organizations or agencies where the Board has regular representation, as appropriate;~~
- ~~5. Establish trustee per diems, subsistence, convention and mileage rates;~~
- ~~6. Review Board member conflict of interest stipulations and determine any disclosure of information requirements;~~

~~7. **Appoint the division's auditors; and**~~

~~8.7. Address other organizational items as required.~~

~~9.8. All elections shall be conducted by secret ballot unless there is unanimous agreement among trustees to use a show of hands.~~

3. Regular **Public** Meetings

1. Regular meetings of the Board will generally be held in public unless a majority of the trustees present at the meeting are of the opinion that it is in the public interest to hold the meeting or part of it in private (see section 5).
2. Unless there has been a motion passed by the required majority within the prescribed time extending the Board meeting, all matters of business which appear on the Board's meeting agenda and which have not been dealt with at the time shall be deemed to be tabled until the next regular meeting of the Board.

***Together we will ensure learning success for all students
to develop their unique potential as caring citizens in a changing world.***



BOARD OPERATIONS BOARD OF TRUSTEES

3. All trustees shall notify the Board Chair or the Superintendent if they are unable to attend a Board meeting.
4. All trustees who are absent from three (3) consecutive regular meetings shall:
 1. Obtain authorization by resolution of the Board to do so; or
 2. Provide to the Board Chair evidence of illness in the form of a medical certificate respecting the period of absence.
Failure to attend may result in disqualification.
- ~~5. If both the Chair or Vice Chair through illness or other cause are unable to perform the duties of the office or are absent, the Board shall appoint from among its members an acting Chair, who on being so appointed has all the powers and shall perform all the duties of the Chair during the Chair's and Vice Chair's inability to act or absence.~~
- ~~6.5. Normally~~ Regular **public** meetings of the Board will not be held without the Superintendent in attendance.
- ~~7.6.~~ No resolution, act or proceeding of the Board is binding unless adopted at a meeting at which a majority of the Board is present.
4. **Special Public Meetings**
 1. Special **public** meetings of the Board may be held from time to time as provided for under ~~section~~ **Section** 67 of the School Act. ~~These are public meetings.~~
 - ~~2. The nature of the business to be transacted must be clearly specified in the notice of the meeting. Unless all trustees are present at the special meeting, no other business may be transacted. A written notice of the special meeting including date, time, place and nature of business shall be issued to all trustees by registered mail at least 7 days prior to the date of the meeting or in person at least 2 days prior unless every trustee agrees to waive in writing the required notice.~~
 - ~~3. The nature of the business must be clearly specified.~~
 - ~~4. Whenever practical, the Board will endeavor to make known the date, time and place of such meetings to persons who may be interested in the topics to be discussed.~~
 - ~~5.2. Normally~~ Special **public** meetings will not be held without the Superintendent in attendance.
5. **In-Private (In-Camera) Sessions**

The School Act uses the term private for non-public meetings. Roberts Rules of Order uses the term executive session for the same distinction. The term in-camera is most commonly used and is synonymous with the other two terms.

The Board believes that its fundamental obligation is to preserve and enhance the public trust in education generally and in the affairs of its operations in particular. The Board believes this trust is preserved through the conduct of Board meetings which are open to the public, but at the same time recognizes that occasions may arise when it is in the best public interest to discuss sensitive matters ~~in private or in~~ in-camera sessions.

The Board reserves the right, within the constraints of statute, to hold in ~~camera~~ ~~private~~ sessions. Such sessions shall be convened only by proper resolution of the Board. Such resolutions shall be recorded in the minutes of the Board and shall specify those individuals eligible to attend. The reason for the in ~~private-camera~~ session shall be stated prior to ~~its approval~~ ~~the session~~ and shall be limited to discussion pertaining to:

 1. Individual division students;
 2. Individual division employees;
 3. Collective bargaining/contract negotiations and salary reviews;
 4. Litigation issues;
 5. Legal advice (client-solicitor privilege);
 6. Acquisition/disposal of property; and
 7. Other matters that the majority of trustees feel would not be in the public interest to discuss in open meeting.

In accordance with the relevant sections of the School Act, such sessions shall be closed to the public and press. The Board shall only discuss the matter which gave rise to the in-

***Together we will ensure learning success for all students
to develop their unique potential as caring citizens in a changing world.***



BOARD OPERATIONS BOARD OF TRUSTEES

~~private-camera~~ meeting. Trustees and other persons attending the session shall maintain confidentiality and shall not disclose the substance of deliberations at such sessions.

The Board shall, during the in-~~private-camera~~ session, adopt only such resolution as is required to reconvene the Board in an open public meeting.

6. Agenda for ~~Regular~~ Regular Public Meetings

1. The Board Chair, in consultation with the Vice Chair and ~~a~~Alternate Vice Chair (as required) and Superintendent and/or designates, is responsible for establishing the agenda for all regular ~~public~~ meetings of the Board. All Board members may attend meetings for establishing the agenda.
2. The agenda will be supported by copies of letters, reports, contracts and other materials as are pertinent to the business which will come before the Board in the performance of its duties. Each action item will include a clear recommendation.
3. Items may be placed on the agenda in one (1) of the following ways:
 1. By notifying the Board Chair or Superintendent at least ~~six-ten (610)~~ days prior to the Board meeting.
 2. By notice of motion at the previous meeting of the Board.
 3. As a request from a committee of the Board.
 4. A quorum of the Board, prior to the approval of the agenda, may request that the Board Chair add an item.
4. The agenda package containing the agenda and supporting information will be distributed to each trustee at least ~~(one week) seven~~ days in advance of regular Board meetings.
5. Emergent issues that require Board action may arise after the agenda has been prepared. The Board Chair, at the beginning of the meeting, shall ask for additions to and/or deletions from the ~~regular public meeting~~ agenda prior to agenda approval. Changes to the agenda may be made by a majority of those present.
6. The Board will follow the order of business set by the agenda unless the order is altered or new items are added by agreement of the Board. The regular order of business shall be as follows:

- ~~1. Call to Order~~
- ~~2. Adoption of the Agenda~~
- ~~3. Action Sheet~~
- ~~4. Roundtable Discussion~~
- ~~5. Adoption of Board Meeting Minutes~~
- ~~6. Board Committee Reports~~
- ~~7. Presentations~~
- ~~8. Report of the Superintendent of Schools~~
 - ~~1. Action/Discussion Items~~
 - ~~2. Information Items~~
- ~~9. Report of the Associate Superintendent (Human Resources)~~
 - ~~1. Action/Discussion Items~~
 - ~~2. Information Items~~
- ~~10. Report of the Associate Superintendent (Education Services—DB)~~
 - ~~1. Action/Discussion Items~~
 - ~~2. Information Items~~
- ~~11. Report of the Associate Superintendent (Education Services—PR)~~
 - ~~1. Action/Discussion Items~~
 - ~~2. Information Items~~
- ~~12. Report of the Corporate Treasurer~~
 - ~~1. Action/Discussion Items~~
 - ~~2. Information Items~~
- ~~13. Adjournment~~

*Together we will ensure learning success for all students
to develop their unique potential as caring citizens in a changing world.*



BOARD OPERATIONS BOARD OF TRUSTEES

1. Call To Order
- ii. Adoption Of Consent Agenda (* Items May Be Moved To Action On Request).
- iii. Action Sheet
- iv. Move To In Camera
- v. Motions Arising From In Camera
- vi. Adoption Of Board Meeting Minutes
- vii. Presentations
- viii. Question Period
- ix. Information Items
- x. * Alberta School Boards Association
- xi. * Public School Boards' Association
- xii. * Board-Teacher Advisory Committee
- xiii. * Audit Committee
- * Labour Relations Negotiating Committee
- * Wall Of Fame Committee
- * Trustee Round Table Reports

Action/Discussion Items

7. During the course of the Board meeting, the majority of trustees present may request that the Board Chair place items before the Board for discussion. The Board may take action on such items.
8. The list of agenda items shall be posted on the division website and be available in the division office. Any elector may inspect the agenda and request a copy.

7. **Minutes and Records**

The Board ~~shall~~ will maintain and preserve by means of minutes a record of all its proceedings and resolutions. The process is outlined in Appendix NNNN.A.

1. ~~The minutes shall record:~~
 1. ~~Date, time and place of meetings;~~
 2. ~~Type of meetings;~~
 3. ~~Name of presiding officer;~~
 4. ~~Names of those trustees and administration in attendance;~~
 5. ~~Approval of preceding minutes;~~
 6. ~~All resolutions, including the Board's disposition of the same, placed before the Board, are to be entered in full;~~
 7. ~~Names of persons making the motion;~~
 8. ~~A brief summary of the circumstances which gave rise to the matter being debated by the Board;~~
 9. ~~Points of order and appeals;~~
 10. ~~Appointments;~~
 11. ~~Summarized reports of committees;~~
 12. ~~Recording of the vote on a motion (when requested pursuant to the School Act);~~
~~and~~
 13. ~~Trustee declaration pursuant to the School Act.~~
2. ~~The minutes shall:~~
 1. ~~Be prepared as directed by the Superintendent;~~
 2. ~~Be reviewed by the Superintendent prior to submission to the Board;~~
 3. ~~Be considered an unofficial record of proceedings until such time as adopted by a resolution of the Board; and~~
 4. ~~Upon adoption by the Board, be deemed to be the official and sole record of the Board's business.~~

***Together we will ensure learning success for all students
to develop their unique potential as caring citizens in a changing world.***

Formatted: Default Paragraph Font

Formatted: List Paragraph, Numbered + Level: 4 + Numbering Style: 1, 2, 3, ... + Start at: 1 + Alignment: Left + Aligned at: 2.5" + Indent at: 2.75"

Formatted: Default Paragraph Font

Formatted: List Paragraph, Numbered + Level: 3 + Numbering Style: i, ii, iii, ... + Start at: 1 + Alignment: Right + Aligned at: 2.13" + Indent at: 2.25"

Formatted: List Paragraph, Indent: Left: 2.25"

Formatted: Indent: Left: 2.13"

Formatted: No underline, Font color: Auto

Formatted: No underline, Font color: Auto



BOARD OPERATIONS
BOARD OF TRUSTEES

3. ~~The Superintendent shall ensure that, upon acceptance by the Board, appropriate initials are appended to each page of the minutes and that appropriate signatures and the corporate seal of the division are affixed to the concluding page of the minutes. It is the responsibility of all trustees present at a meeting to check the minutes for errors or omissions.~~
4. ~~The Superintendent shall establish a codification system for resolutions determined by the Board which will:
 1. Provide for ready identification as to the meeting at which it was considered; and
 2. Provide for cross-referencing with resolutions of similar nature adopted by the Board at previous meetings.~~
5. ~~As part of its ongoing effort to keep staff and the public fully informed concerning its affairs and actions, the Board expects the Superintendent to institute and maintain effective and appropriate procedures for the prompt dissemination of information about decisions made at all Board meetings.~~
6. ~~The approved minutes of a regular or special meeting shall be posted to the website as soon as possible following approval. The Superintendent or designate is responsible to distribute and post the approved minutes.~~
7. ~~All committees of the Board, unless otherwise directed, shall prepare a record of their proceedings and submit them to the Board as required.~~
8. ~~The following records and documents will be kept on file at the division office and be made available to electors upon request:
 1. The agenda of any regular or committee meeting of the Board;
 2. Approved minutes of all Board meetings;
 3. Records of the proceedings of all Board committee meetings, except those that relate to individual employees and students;
 4. The annual budget approved by the Board;
 5. All legal agreements entered into by the Board, exclusive of student or employee records or contracts;
 6. The division's current Three Year Education Plan;
 7. The division's current Annual Education Results Report;
 8. Records of the status of all Board accounts; and
 9. Audited financial statements for previous year's operations.~~
9. ~~A photocopying charge may be levied to any elector requesting copies of the above noted records and documents.~~

8. **Motions – See Appendix nnnnn.B**

~~Motions do not require a seconder, except in rare instances as described below.~~

4-9. **Notice of Motion**

~~The notice of motion serves the purpose of officially putting an item on the agenda of the next or future regular meeting and gives notice to all trustees of the item to be discussed. A notice of motion is not debatable and may not be voted on.~~

~~A trustee may present a notice of motion for consideration at the next regular meeting of the Board or may specify another meeting date. A trustee may also provide the Superintendent with a written notice of motion and ask that it be placed on the agenda of the next regular meeting and read at the meeting. The trustee will need not be present during the reading of the motion; however, if the trustee is not present, a seconder is required at the meeting at which the notice is given; otherwise the item will be dropped.~~

2-10. **Discussion on Motions**

~~The custom of addressing comments to the Board Chair is to be followed by all persons in attendance.~~

~~A Board motion or recommendation from the Superintendent or designate must be placed before the Board prior to any discussion taking place on an issue. When a motion originates from the floor, the mover of the motion shall provide a written copy of the motion to the Board Chair. Once a motion is before the Board and until it is passed or defeated, all speakers shall confine their remarks to the motion or to the information pertinent to the motion.~~

Formatted

*Together we will ensure learning success for all students
to develop their unique potential as caring citizens in a changing world.*



BOARD OPERATIONS BOARD OF TRUSTEES

3.11. Speaking to the Motion

~~The mover of a motion first and every trustee shall have an opportunity to speak to the motion before any trustee is allowed to speak a second time. The mover of the motion is permitted to close debate on the motion.~~

~~As a general guide, a trustee is not to speak longer than five (5) minutes on any motion. The Board Chair has the responsibility to limit the discussion by a trustee when such a discussion is repetitive or digresses from the topic at hand, or where discussion takes place prior to the acceptance of a motion. No one shall interrupt a speaker unless it is to ask for important clarification of the speaker's remarks, and any such interruption shall not be permitted without permission of the Board Chair. Should a trustee arrive at the meeting after a motion has been made and prior to taking a vote, the trustee may request further discussion prior to the vote. The Board Chair shall rule on further discussion.~~

4.12. Reading of the Motion

~~A trustee may require the motion under discussion to be read at any time during the debate, except when a trustee is speaking.~~

5.13. Recorded Vote

~~The recording secretary shall, whenever a recorded vote is requested by a trustee before the vote is taken, record in the minutes the names of the trustees who voted for or against the matter. The recording secretary shall, immediately after a vote is taken and on the request of a trustee, record in the minutes the names of that trustee and whether that trustee voted for or against the matter.~~

Required Votes

~~The Board Chair and all trustees present, unless excused by resolution of the Board or by the provisions of the School Act, shall vote on each question. Each question shall be decided by a majority of the votes of those trustees present. A simple majority of a quorum of the Board will decide in favour of the question. In the case of an equality of votes, the question is defeated. A vote on a question shall be taken by open vote expressed by show of hands, except the vote to elect the Board Chair or Vice Chair, which is by secret ballot.~~

6.14. Debate

~~In all debate, any matter of procedure in dispute shall be settled, if possible, by reference to Robert's Rules of Order. If this reference is inadequate, procedure may be determined by motion supported by the majority of trustees in attendance.~~

9.15. Delegations to Board Meetings **MUST BE REVISED**

The Board believes that it has the responsibility to encourage members of the public to bring concerns relating to educational matters to regular meetings of the Board. The Board also believes it has a responsibility to conduct regular public meetings of the Board in an orderly and efficient fashion. The Board will receive representations and delegations on any subject pertinent to Board business provided the item has been placed on the agenda.

1. Individuals or groups wishing to make representation to the Board:
 1. Shall advise the Superintendent of the nature of the matter to be discussed with the Board; and
 2. Shall be granted by the Superintendent an appointed time on the meeting agenda in which to make representation if, in the opinion of the Board Chair and the Superintendent, the matter is pertinent to Board business.
2. Normally, and excepting items raised pursuant to section 5 of this policy, the following procedures will govern the conduct of the hearing:
 1. The delegation may make its presentation in writing and/or orally.
 2. The delegation shall, during its meeting with the Board, observe the rules of parliamentary decorum.
 3. The delegation shall be entitled to complete its presentation, preferably within fifteen (15) minutes, without questioning or comments from the Board.
 4. Upon completion of the presentation the Board Chair shall allow, for a maximum of fifteen (15) minutes, trustee questions of the delegation.

***Together we will ensure learning success for all students
to develop their unique potential as caring citizens in a changing world.***



BOARD OPERATIONS BOARD OF TRUSTEES

5. Upon completion of the question period, the Board Chair shall inform the delegation when the decision will be made.

~~3. Notwithstanding the above, the jurisdiction residents or group may appear before the Board at a regular meeting and request placement on the agenda without prior notice. The Board will determine whether or not the delegation will be added to the agenda. The Board directs that anyone wanting to use recording devices at a public board meeting shall obtain prior approval of the Board Chair. The Board will set aside 15 minutes on each agenda for a question period. Interested persons may raise relevant issues. Each person will have up to five minutes. This agenda item shall be held at the same time during the meeting.~~

14.16. **Trustee Remuneration and Attendance at Meetings, Conferences, Conventions and Seminars**

Trustees will be required to attend various conferences, conventions, seminars and meetings in their capacity as trustees. Funds will be identified in the annual budget for transportation, accommodation and subsistence for trustee participation in the above activities. The Superintendent shall provide reports to the Board on the status of this account as requested.

1. Approved activities include regular and special public Board meetings, Board committee meetings, Board retreats and workshops, division-wide school council meetings, conventions, conferences, seminars, workshops, meetings with government officials and the conduct of Board-related business.
2. The division shall pay or reimburse trustees for the expenses related to registration fees, transportation (CRA rates will apply), parking, meals and accommodation.
3. Should any issue arise with a trustee's claim, the issue shall be forwarded to the Board Chair for his/her interpretation. If a trustee is in disagreement with an interpretation made by the Board Chair, he/she may appeal it to the Board.
4. The Board-approved document entitled Board of Trustees Remuneration outlines the necessary details with regard to reimbursing trustees for their time spent carrying out the business of the Board. This document is available from the Superintendent.

14.17. **Trustee Conflict of Interest**

~~The trustee is directly responsible to the electorate of the division and to the Board. Upon election to office, the trustee must complete a disclosure of personal interest statement and accept a position of public trust. The trustee is expected to act in a manner which will enhance the trust accorded the trustee, and through the trustee, the trust accorded to the Board.~~

~~The Board is of the firm conviction that its ability to discharge its obligations is dependent upon the trust and confidence of the electorate in its Board and in its trustee members. Therefore, the Board believes in the requirement to declare conflict of interest.~~

1. The trustee is expected to be conversant with sections Sections 80 to 91 of the School Act.
- ~~2. The trustee is responsible for declaring himself/herself to be in possible conflict of interest.~~
 - ~~1. The trustee shall make such declaration in open meeting prior to Board or committee discussion of the subject matter which may place the trustee in conflict of interest.~~
 - ~~2. Following the declaration of conflict of interest by a trustee, all debate and action shall cease until the trustee has left the room.~~
- ~~3. It shall be the responsibility of the trustee in conflict to absent himself/herself from the meeting in accordance with the requirements of the School Act and ensure that his/her declaration and absence is properly recorded within the minutes.~~
- ~~4. The recording secretary will record in the minutes:~~
 - ~~1. The trustee's declaration;~~
 - ~~2. The trustee's abstention from the debate and the vote; and~~
 - ~~3. That the trustee left the room in which the meeting was held.~~

14. **Meetings by electronic means:**

- ~~1. Meetings by electronic means may be convened in the event of extenuating circumstances.~~
- ~~2. Participation from outside the boundaries of the division for more than one (1) meeting is at the discretion of the Board by resolution.~~

***Together we will ensure learning success for all students
to develop their unique potential as caring citizens in a changing world.***



Scope and Limitations of Superintendent:

The Superintendent ~~normally~~ attends all regular public Board meetings, ~~unless~~ He/she may be excluded by the will of the Board from an in-camera session.

Information and Monitoring Requirements:

Annual Board Evaluation
Annual Evaluation of Trustees

1ST DRAFT



BOARD OPERATIONS
BOARD OF TRUSTEES

APPENDIX nnnn.A

1. The minutes shall record:
 1. Date, time and place of meeting;
 2. Type of meeting;
 3. Name of presiding officer;
 4. Names of those trustees and administration in attendance;
 5. Approval of preceding minutes;
 6. All resolutions, including the Board's disposition of the same, placed before the Board, are to be entered in full;
 7. Names of persons making the motion;
 8. A brief summary of the circumstances which gave rise to the matter being debated by the Board;
 9. Points of order and appeals;
 10. Appointments;
 11. Summarized reports of committees;
 12. Recording of the vote on a motion (when requested pursuant to the School Act); and
 13. Trustee declaration pursuant to the School Act.
2. The minutes shall:
 1. Be prepared as directed by the Superintendent;
 2. Be reviewed by the Superintendent prior to submission to the Board;
 3. Be considered an unofficial record of proceedings until such time as adopted by a resolution of the Board; and
 4. Upon adoption by the Board, be deemed to be the official and sole record of the Board's business.
3. The Superintendent shall ensure that, upon acceptance by the Board, appropriate initials are appended to each page of the minutes and that appropriate signatures and the corporate seal of the division are affixed to the concluding page of the minutes. It is the responsibility of all trustees present at a meeting to check the minutes for errors or omissions.
4. The Superintendent shall establish a codification system for resolutions determined by the Board which will:
 1. Provide for ready identification as to the meeting at which it was considered; and
 2. Provide for cross-referencing with resolutions of similar nature adopted by the Board at previous meetings.
5. As part of its ongoing effort to keep staff and the public fully informed concerning its affairs and actions, the Board expects the Superintendent to institute and maintain effective and appropriate procedures for the prompt dissemination of information about decisions made at all Board meetings.
6. The approved minutes of a regular or special meeting shall be posted to the website as soon as possible following approval. The Superintendent or designate is responsible to distribute and post the approved minutes.
7. All committees of the Board, unless otherwise directed, shall prepare a record of their proceedings and submit them to the Board as required.
8. The following records and documents will be kept on file at the division office and be made available to electors upon request:
 1. The agenda of any regular or committee meeting of the Board;
 2. Approved minutes of all Board meetings;
 3. Records of the proceedings of all Board committee meetings, except those that relate to individual employees and students;
 4. The annual budget approved by the Board;
 5. All legal agreements entered into by the Board, exclusive of student or employee records or contracts;

***Together we will ensure learning success for all students
to develop their unique potential as caring citizens in a changing world.***



BOARD OPERATIONS
BOARD OF TRUSTEES

6. The division's current Three-Year Education Plan;
 7. The division's current Annual Education Results Report;
 8. Records of the status of all Board accounts; and
 9. Audited financial statements for previous year's operations.
9. A photocopying charge may be levied to any elector requesting copies of the above-noted records and documents.

1ST DRAFT

*Together we will ensure learning success for all students
to develop their unique potential as caring citizens in a changing world.*



BOARD OPERATIONS BOARD OF TRUSTEES

APPENDIX NNN.B

+ Motions do not require a seconder, except in rare instances as described below.

Formatted: Space Before: 0 pt, After: 0 pt,
No bullets or numbering

Formatted: Font: 12 pt

1. Notice of Motion

The notice of motion serves the purpose of officially putting an item on the agenda of the next or future regular meeting and gives notice to all trustees of the item to be discussed. A notice of motion is not debatable and may not be voted on.

A trustee may present a notice of motion for consideration at the next regular meeting of the Board or may specify another meeting date. A trustee may also provide the Superintendent with a written notice of motion and ask that it be placed on the agenda of the next regular meeting and read at the meeting. The trustee will need not be present during the reading of the motion; however, if the trustee is not present, a seconder is required at the meeting at which the notice is given; otherwise the item will be dropped.

2. Discussion on Motions

The custom of addressing comments to the Board Chair is to be followed by all persons in attendance.

A Board motion or recommendation from the Superintendent or designate must be placed before the Board prior to any discussion taking place on an issue. When a motion originates from the floor, the mover of the motion shall provide a written copy of the motion to the Board Chair. Once a motion is before the Board and until it is passed or defeated, all speakers shall confine their remarks to the motion or to the information pertinent to the motion.

3. Speaking to the Motion

The mover of a motion first and every trustee shall have an opportunity to speak to the motion before any trustee is allowed to speak a second time. The mover of the motion is permitted to close debate on the motion.

As a general guide, a trustee is not to speak longer than five (5) minutes on any motion. The Board Chair has the responsibility to limit the discussion by a trustee when such a discussion is repetitive or digresses from the topic at hand, or where discussion takes place prior to the acceptance of a motion.

No one shall interrupt a speaker unless it is to ask for important clarification of the speaker's remarks, and any such interruption shall not be permitted without permission of the Board Chair.

Should a trustee arrive at the meeting after a motion has been made and prior to taking a vote, the trustee may request further discussion prior to the vote. The Board Chair shall rule on further discussion.

4. Reading of the Motion

A trustee may require the motion under discussion to be read at any time during the debate, except when a trustee is speaking.

5. Recorded Vote

The recording secretary shall, whenever a recorded vote is requested by a trustee before the vote is taken, record in the minutes the names of the trustees who voted for or against the matter. The recording secretary shall, immediately after a vote is taken and on the request of a trustee, record in the minutes the names of that trustee and whether that trustee voted for or against the matter

Required Votes

The Board Chair and all trustees present, unless excused by resolution of the Board or by the provisions of the School Act, shall vote on each question. Each question shall be decided by a majority of the votes of those trustees present. A simple majority of a quorum of the Board will decide in favour of the question. In the case of an equality of votes, the question is defeated. A vote on a question shall be taken by open vote expressed by show of hands, except the vote to elect the Board Chair or Vice Chair, which is by secret ballot.

***Together we will ensure learning success for all students
to develop their unique potential as caring citizens in a changing world.***



BOARD OPERATIONS
BOARD OF TRUSTEES

6. Debate
In all debate, any matter of procedure in dispute shall be settled, if possible, by reference to Robert's Rules of Order. If this reference is inadequate, procedure may be determined by motion supported by the majority of trustees in attendance.

1ST DRAFT

*Together we will ensure learning success for all students
to develop their unique potential as caring citizens in a changing world.*